
GOVERNOR'S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

Developmental Disabilities Committee Meeting 
 

LOCATION 
Governor’s Council Conference Room 

3601 C Street 
Anchorage, Alaska 

 
Meeting Date 
April 27, 2010 

 
 

Attendees: 
 

Kathy Fitzgerald, Chair 
Ric Nelson, Chair 
Bryan Knight 
Emily Ennis 
Steve Lesko 
Velja Elstad 
Caroline Hogan 
Steve Williams 
 

Guests: 
  
 Dayna McGuire 

 
 
Staff: 

 
Duane Mayes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Paula DiPaolo 
      Peninsula Reporting 
 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

2 

Call to Order – 2:05 p.m. 
Roll Call 
 
INTRODUCTIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS OR GOOD NEWS 
 
Ric Nelson announced that he is graduating this week. 
 
Dayna McGuire announced that Ric Nelson nominated her for DSP of the 
year and she won. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Steve Lesko made a MOTION to approve the agenda.  Bryan Knight 
SECONDED.  The agenda was APPROVED. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES 
 
Bryan Knight made a MOTION to approve the minutes from the face-to-face 
meeting.  Ric Nelson SECONDED.  The minutes were APPROVED. 
 
Ric Nelson made a MOTION to approve the minutes from the March 16, 2010 
meeting.  Velja Elstad SECONDED.  The minutes were APPROVED. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Duane Mayes stated that there was a home and community-based services 
public meeting on the 20th.  And Duane stated that he wanted to follow up with 
written comment.  He stated that the Council would like to read the position 
paper of AADD regarding this and see if there is anything the Council can add 
to it. 
 
Emily Ennis stated that Michael Bailey from Hope and Will from Frontier 
Community Services have finished the draft of their first written response.  
She stated that a copy of the written response can be made available to the 
Council.  
 
Steve Williams stated that the Trust would also like to receive a copy of that 
draft letter from AADD.  Kathy Fitzgerald added that they will forward a copy of 
the Council’s response letter to the Trust as well. 
 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

3 

REPORTS 
 
From the Chair 
 
Kathy Fitzgerald stated that it was a disappointing year because SB 32 and 
the autism insurance bill did not pass the legislature.  She stated that the 
Council will need to do some strategic planning over the summer to plan for 
this next legislative session.  Kathy also stated that she will be doing another 
full-day Partners in Policymaking training, and they will discuss what can be 
done to make sure that the voices of people with disabilities are heard in the 
legislature. 
 
Division of Senior and Disability Services 
 
Caroline Hogan stated that the brochure has gone forward to CMS and she 
appreciates the Council’s help with that. 
 
Caroline stated that DSDS did a waitlist draw in April of 50 people, and the 
next draw will be in July.  The number of people on the registry is currently 
977, however, there are 59 people in the queue that had the DD eligibility 
approved and are waiting to go on the registry.  Kathy Fitzgerald added that 
the range of scores is from zero to 90, and the median was 14.  The range of 
ages is from 72 years to a year-and-a-half. 
 
Caroline addressed a previous question about what kind of data they can pull 
from the reports and stated that someone would need to go in manually to 
every single record to collect that information.  At the moment, it is not feasible 
because of manpower issues.  Kathy Fitzgerald suggested enlisting the help 
of UAA students. 
 
Caroline Hogan stated that the acting director of DSDS is Kimberly Poppe-
Smart and Kimberly wanted Caroline to pass along that she is very open to 
suggestions and input from everyone. 
 
Ric Nelson asked what is going to happen with the Long-Term Care 
Committee.  Caroline stated that she’ll have to get back to him on that. 
 
AADD Report 
 
Emily Ennis stated that in addition to the CFO work group efforts in response 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

4 

to address the Medicaid regulations, AADD is also going to begin an in-depth 
analysis of the rate methodology tool that providers will begin using this next 
fiscal year.  They have a consultant that they will be interviewing to take a 
good look at the rate methodology tool. 
 
Emily stated that AADD is also having a work group to go over the corrective 
action plan to take an in-depth look at it.  John Cannon is chairing the work 
group and they will have reports for the AADD membership and the Council 
soon.  Kathy Fitzgerald stated that she would like to participate on that work 
group. 
 
Emily stated that from a provider’s standpoint, most of them are close to 
finishing their grant continuation application.  She stated that this is the first 
time they have done this electronically and there has been a benefit in not 
having to make many copies of grant proposals, but there have also been 
some concerns that the simplified formats don’t work for some of the 
providers.  She said that overall, the grant administrators have been very 
helpful and the process has gone fairly well. 
 
Emily stated that she joins the Council’s disappointment regarding SB 32 and 
the issue of the fiscal note increasing by three times in the last moments.  
Emily stated that AADD will work alongside the Council as they move this 
forward again next year.  Kathy Fitzgerald added that the system seems to be 
driven more by budget than it does by program.  She stated that she would 
like the Council, AADD and DSDS to spend some time discussing how they 
can get back to looking at core service provision and programmatic things 
driving the system. 
 
Kathy Fitzgerald asked Emily Ennis if there was anything regarding a quality 
assurance system in the draft corrective action plan that the Division 
developed for CMS.  Emily stated that she hasn’t gotten all the way through it, 
but noted that there is a large section on quality improvement strategy.  She 
stated that it appears that it is calling for a quality improvement hearing 
committee to provide oversight, and there will be a lot of representatives on 
that committee.  There is also a quality improvement work group comprised of 
external parties, advocates and self-advocates.  They also have a task 
committee.   
 
Kathy Fitzgerald explained that she is more interested in the old system of 
quality assurance where site reviews were completed by peer executive 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

5 

directors, advocates and self-advocates, and they would randomly pull charts 
and examine them based on the five core values, which included respect, 
dignity, self-determination and community participation.  It was the State’s 
opportunity to give assistance to agencies to help the agency do a better job.  
Kathy added that this is the type of quality assurance the Council would like to 
see return. 
 
Council Report 
 
Duane Mayes stated that he had a teleconference with the director and the 
staff from AbleLink out of Colorado Springs.  Duane informed them that the 
Council is going to promote their product through a variety of listservs with a 
primary focus on the AADD listserv. 
 
Duane stated that he met with Karen Ward regarding gathering information 
and data that have been collected regarding direct service worker living wage 
issues.  Karen sent Duane e-mails containing information that they can begin 
to try to decipher. 
 
Duane stated that he will be meeting with Steve Williams and Nancy Burke 
from the Trust to have a further discussion about the issues raised during the 
Residential Services Summit which included intentional communities, 
electronic monitoring and smart homes.  Duane stated that he has invited Matt 
Jones from Rest Assured to attend the DD Committee’s June meeting to talk 
to them about how the system is working. 
 
Duane stated that for ISIS, the $650,000 budget increment did not get into the 
operating budget, and he noted that the Department was using WICHE as a 
reason for not supporting it.  They were then able to get a legislator to put a 
reduced amount of $162,000 for ISIS into the budget, but it was eliminated.  
Duane also noted that WICHE is in phase two and Millie Ryan is on that work 
group.  They will be coming up with very clear recommendations by the end of 
August.  Kathy Fitzgerald added that the Council has a major role in working 
with the Department to ensure that people with the most significant needs are 
served in their community.  Duane agreed and stated that this year the 
Council should be putting a lot of pressure on that piece. 
 
Duane Mayes stated that to address that increased fiscal noted being 
presented to the legislators in the final moments of SB 32 is something that 
the Council needs to discuss with the Department.   



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

6 

 
Duane stated that the Council will be working on their five-year State Plan.  He 
put together a draft to begin the process of doing community forums around 
the state.  Over the next 15 months, they will take trips to six areas around the 
state to gather information. 
 
Duane stated that the RFR process is gearing up again.  The Council has sent 
out an e-mail asking people to complete a survey on project ideas.  The 
Council has to make recommendations for MHTAAR funding of up to $1 
million and GF/MH recommendations of up to $3 million.  The joint beneficiary 
boards will work together to come up with capital recommendations. 
 
Executive Committee 
 
Duane Mayes stated that the Executive Committee will have to postpone their 
next meeting. 
 
Key Coalition 
 
Steve Lesko stated that Key will be meeting this summer as a developmental 
meeting for their local chapters.  They will also meet again in the fall to 
develop their legislative agenda and platform. 
 
Steve stated that they are in the last stages of their reorganization as a 
501(C)(4). 
 
Steve stated that he believes in terms of SB 32 and HB 187, Key will have a 
new resolve with the Council and other advocacy groups.  They are going to 
have to dig in their heels and not give up. 
 
Steve stated that because of Key’s education regarding changing the eligibility 
from 50 to 25 percent for Infant Learning, Representative Gara and his staff 
are interested in championing that. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
FY’10 Work Plan Review and Accomplishments 
 
Duane Mayes stated that they are working through their action items from the 
discussion of the work plan at the face-to-face meeting in Fairbanks.   



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

7 

Goal I:  Accurately define service needs among people with 
developmental disabilities to establish a basis for advocacy and 
planning. 
 
Activity I.A:  Increase direct service workers to a living wage.   
 
Duane stated that this will be a continued work plan item.  Steve Lesko added 
that in order for them to do this accurately and correctly, the first thing is 
gathering information on what a living wage is that doesn’t hurt the DSPs.  
Steve also stated that they need to get the administration to support it and get 
some champions in the legislature with the data they can gather. 
 
Activity I.B:  Improve the data collection system of the DD registry. 
 
Kathy Fitzgerald explained that this work plan item was to address the 
difference between individuals who did not meet level of care for waivers and 
people who are funded through grant dollars.  It is also to be more proactive in 
getting people into service with lesser amounts. 
 
Steve Lesko asked how they can get some of these priorities actualized, 
particularly in terms of the tiered system.  Duane Mayes suggested that the 
Waitlist Ad Hoc Committee can possibly be revitalized when the new director 
of DSDS comes on board.  Kathy Fitzgerald stated that they need to commit 
some real time to looking at the disparity and how they are going to be able to 
make sure that people who don’t meet level of care but still need services can 
actually get some services to be productive and independent. 
 
Duane asked Caroline Hogan to check in with staff at DSDS and let them 
know that the DD Committee has had this discussion and that it is on their 
work plan. 
 
Activity I.C:  Support the family waiver training; make certain that families on 
the DD registry are invited to the trainings. 
 
Duane stated that this is an ongoing activity that Kathy Fitzgerald does. 
 
Activity I.D:  Continue to participate on the Ad Hoc Committee on Autism to 
develop support for the recommendations to the legislature and the 
administration. 
 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

8 

Duane stated that this is an ongoing activity that Kathy Fitzgerald and Chris 
Saddler engage in. 
 
Activity I.E:  Work with SDS to implement the supported employment 
recommendations (funded through the Medicaid Infrastructure Grant). 
 
Duane Mayes stated that Jennifer Jones and Angela Salerno are working 
together on the supported employment piece, and Duane said that he’s 
hopeful they will create some new policies around supported employment. 
 
Activity I.F:  Study the Adult Public Assistance rates in order to possibly 
recommend an increase. 
 
Duane Mayes stated that the rate is currently $362, which is a rate that had 
been set in 1993.  He also stated that this is one of many important issues the 
DD Committee has before it, and to begin the process of addressing the APA 
rate, a lot of time will need to be invested in it.  Kathy Fitzgerald stated that 
she would like to see this remain on the work plan as a placeholder because 
at some point they will have to address it.  Ric Nelson agreed that it should be 
left as a priority, but maybe placed on the bottom of the list. 
 
Activity I.G:  Establish a housing work group to look at affordable transitional 
housing resources for individuals with developmental disabilities. 
 
Duane stated that he spoke with Nancy Burke and asked her to participate in 
the June DD Committee meeting so they can further explore creating a group 
to focus on DD.  Duane stated that he has participated on various committees 
such as deferred maintenance, program equipment, the SNHG Review 
Committee, and feels that this participation represents people with 
developmental disabilities.   
 
Kathy Fitzgerald stated that she believes in the future it will be more difficult to 
get affordable housing.  She is glad that the Trust will be looking at this, 
because it’s going to become more important with additional reductions at the 
federal level. 
 
Duane stated that Carrie Predeger is working on a housing stock survey with 
planners of the beneficiary boards and the Trust. 
 
Activity I.H:  Support self-advocacy organizations.   



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

9 

 
Duane stated that Millie Ryan is taking the lead on this.  He stated that there 
was a $50,000 MHTAAR increment to move forward with this.  They had 
originally asked for $50,000 MHTAAR and $100,000 GF/MH, but the GF/MH 
was zeroed out. 
 
Activity I.I:  Coordinate advocacy efforts with the Key Coalition. 
 
Duane Mayes stated that this is an ongoing activity. 
 
Goal II:  Promote the establishment of a comprehensive, outcome-based 
fiscal and programmatic quality assurance system. 
 
Activity II.A:  Work with SDS to assess and make recommendations for a 
meaningful QA process and system that includes peer review and consumer 
satisfaction. 
 
Duane stated that in order for them to see this goal realized, there needs to be 
Council representation on a work group with SDS to assist with this.  Caroline 
Hogan stated that there is a task committee, and she can look into that. 
 
Kathy Fitzgerald clarified this goal by stating that the quality assurance site 
reviews are for provider organizations, not the Division.   
 
Goal III:  Support, monitor and track Alaska Mental Health Trust 
Authority Focus areas. 
 
Activity III.A:  Participate in the Trust focus area work groups. 
 
Duane Mayes stated that this is an ongoing activity. 
 
Goal IV:  Track and monitor the Medicaid/Medicare system. 
 
Activity IV.A:  Advocate for increased reimbursement rate for Medicare as it 
affects access to medical care. 
 
Duane stated that this is an ongoing activity. 
 
Activity IV.B:  Monitor and comment on the development and implementation 
of a State rate methodology and review process (SB 32). 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

10 

 
Duane stated that this is an ongoing activity, though will be named something 
different next year.  Steve Lesko stated that gathering all the information about 
why this didn’t pass will be critical as they move forward.  Kathy Fitzgerald 
added that she believes the Council will need to do some strategic planning 
about what they are going to talk to their legislators about.  Steve Lesko 
added that Johnny Ellis is committed to not letting the rate review issue die.  
Steve also suggested working with the Department to at least get something 
into regulation to start with, even though the Council will not be satisfied with 
regulation only. 
 
Duane Mayes stated that there are draft regulations coming out in the next 12 
months.  He stated that the DD Committee will be working closely with the 
Legislative Committee, as they need to respond to those regulations in written 
comment or public testimony. 
 
Duane noted one additional priority that was not included on the draft work 
plan is ISIS, but he will add that in.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion on the DD Committee’s FY’11 Priority Recommendations to 
the Full Council  
 
Kathy Fitzgerald stated that their top priorities are:  Rate review, monitor the 
regulations, ISIS, and the quality assurance system.   
 
Ric Nelson stated that another issue is the problem of switching doctors when 
Medicaid covers someone and then the patients’ annual physicals are no 
longer being covered for preventative care.  Kathy agreed and stated that the 
Medicaid system is a very unfriendly system. 
 
Duane shared with the DD Committee other priorities of the Council, some of 
which include: 
 

• Autism insurance reform 
• Change in Infant Learning eligibility 
• High school qualifying exit exam 
• FASD 
• Restraint and seclusion in schools 



 

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and             April 27, 2010  
Special Education   DD Committee Meeting 
 

11 

 
 
Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
The next teleconference is scheduled for June 2010. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The DD Committee adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 


